LYNDON CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF
October 11, 2021

The Lyndon City Council met in regular session on Monday, October 11, 2021, 7:00 p.m., at City
Hall.

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Steve Morrison called the meeting to order.

a) ROLL CALL: City Clerk called roll of the City Council. Mayor Steve Morrison, and
members Katie Shepard, Kevin Heit, Lynn Atchison, and Eric Ramey were present.
Council President Darin Schmitt was absent with notification.

City Staff present: Pat Walsh, City Attorney; Julie Stutzman, City Clerk; Scott
Culley, Maintenance Supervisor; and Officer Darrel Manning.

Others Present: Bruce Boettcher, Wes Weishaar and Kendra Beatty, BG Consultants;
Garret Nordstrom, Western Consultants; and Lyndon City residents George
Stutzman, Deb Smith, Sharon and Kevin Culley, Sarah Hitt, Sarah Anderson, Scott
Harrison, Larry Wedermyer, Daniel Mathias, Sharon, Zacharia, and Charles Hanna.

2. APPROVAL OF SPECIAL AGENDA:

a) Shepard made the motion to approve the special meeting agenda of October 11,
2021. Atchison seconded; motion carried.

3. PUBLIC HEARING - CDBG GRANT FOR COMMUNITY CENTER: Garrett Nordstrom
with Western Consultants stated the public hearing is part of the Community Development
Block Grant citizen participation requirement.

Mayor Morrison stated the current community center facility is in a flood plain and has
been flooded several times. The flood insurance is approximately $4,000 per year, it
increases at least 25% annually and is going up at an unsustainable rate. If these rates
continue, the discussion may lead to having to close the community center and not have one
or proceed with creating a new community center that is befitting of our community.

Mayor Morrison also stated that FEMA will buyout the current facility at 75% of its
appraised value when the city condemns it and tears it down. Scott Harrison asked how
much the 75% buyout would be and Mayor Morrison stated approximately $60,000 to
$64,000.

Mayor Morrison stated that the city has been saving funds for quite a while and has saved
over $330,000 to paint and renovate the city’s water tower. He stated that after obtaining
quotes that only approximately $163,4000 of those funds will be needed to paint the water
tower. Mayor Morrison stated that cash wise, the city has been fiscally responsible over the
last 7 years and holds a higher cash reserve than normal and needs use those funds to
provide services within the city. He stated that the Council feels that using those funds to
build a new community center would be providing taxpayers value for their tax dollars.

Mayor Morrison stated the Council is confident that with the matching grants and the funds
held in reserve would cover the cost of the project with little or no debt.



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 2

At 7:05 p.m. Mayor Morrison opened the floor for public comments in regards to the
proposed community center and stated that residents are given 5 minutes to speak with an
aggregate limit of 45 minutes.

Sharon Hanna asked who would be responsible for the paying the debt. Mayor Morrison
stated there would more than likely not be any debt and the city should be able to pay for it
outright. Ms. Hanna asked if the city was not able to then the citizens would be responsible
for paying it. Mayor Morrison responded yes and stated it would more than likely be a Ioan
through another agency with low interest rates.

Scott Harrison asked about the finance details, where the city stands as far as the sewer
project and the cost of water and sewer utilities in Lyndon being one of the highest in the
state. Mr. Harrison stated “It is all combine because it is all part of the city, raised the water
bill to pay for the sewer and now the city is asking residents to go into more debt for a
community center?” Daniel Mathias stated the city is stating they are not spending money
but yet the city is taking more money from the citizens.

Mayor Morrison wanted to clarify utilities and stated that when it comes to finances there
are regulations and laws that the city has to abide by in regards to funds. The amount
residents pay for water pays for the operation of the water utility system and sewer pays for
the operation of the sewer utility. The rates citizen’s pay for water is based on use and the
amount the city has to pay in debt for the water system and the same applies for the sewer
system. The funding for the community center does not come out of either of those funds.

Deb Smith asked what the additional $25 a month the residents pay if water pays for water
and sewer pays for sewer. Mayor Morrison stated those funds pay the sewer debt itself and
is not used for anything other than that. Deb Smith then asked “Didn’t the city raised taxes
a percentage to cover this debt?” Mayor Morrison stated the city has not raised taxes and the
City Clerk stated the city has not raised the mill levy for many years. Mayor Morrison
stated a good portion of the funding for the project is coming out of City .5% and City 1%
sales tax funds. This particular sales tax aides the city in providing better infrastructure and
development of the community such as streets, buildings and overall improvements of the
city. Mayor Morrison stated that a good portion of those funds are paid by people who live
in the county or out of state and not just by the residents of Lyndon who shop in town.
These funds are not generated from property taxes through the county mill levy and
essentially is from the .5% and 1% sales tax funds.

Deb Smith asked if there is not enough money to pay the cost of the project, will that be
tacked onto the resident’s water bill also as a city fee. Mayor Morrison stated no it will not
and the water bill will only be charging you for the cost of water and sewer for the cost of
sewer.

Scott Harrison asked if the city does incur debt, then the city will raise the percentage of
sales tax to cover it. Mayor Morrison stated the cost would come out of future .5% and 1%
sales tax revenues which comes in every month. The City Clerk stated the city receives
approximately $32,000 a month in sales tax which is divided between the General, .5% and
1% funds and Mayor Morrison stated it is set aside to improve the city.



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 3

Deb Smith stated that if the city opts to not build a new community center and fix the
current facility what happens to the surplus money sitting out there. Mayor Morrison stated
that the city would look into other projects, but upgrading the community center would
consume a good portion of it and the city would still have a building that floods and
increasing insurance rates.

Ramey stated the city did obtain a cost of renovating the current community center and the
cost was in the $800,00 range. Atchison stated $867,000. Scott Harrison stated it would need
to have flood walls to be impenetrable.

Scott Harrison asked how many bids have been obtained for the project. Mayor Morrison
stated right now the project is in the planning phase and they just came up with the project
budget. The project has not gone out to bid and that would actually be a part of phase two
which will be next year. At that point it may come in lower than the estimated cost and who
knows with what the pricing has been doing in the building materials markets and
construction area will come in at. The cost of lumber has gone down, however, the cost of
steel is still on the rise. It is the city’s hope that by the time the city puts the project out to
bid that the cost of construction has settled and settle a little lower than what it currently is.

Deb Smith asked if the proposed location of the community center at city park is owned by
the city or is still owned by the county. Mayor Morrison stated city park is owned by the
city and the proposed location is on the old practice field essentially.

Sarah Hitt asked if the grant funding could be used on anything else in the park. Mayor
Morrison stated the grant funding is limited to the community center project. The project
would provide better bathroom facilities at the park and would provide new and better
access to the park as well as increased parking.

Deb Smith asked if there had been an estimate obtained on the cost of insurance for the new
building. Mayor Morrison asked Wes Weishaar if BG had looked into that and Mr.
Weishaar stated that is generally a value figured into the architectural report for
maintenance and upkeep, however, is not sure if it is broken out specifically by line item.
Scott Harrison stated that it would more than likely be far less than flood insurance to which
the Mayor concurred.

Scott Harrison asked if any part of the funding could be use to remove the dilapidated gas
station next to the park. Mayor Morrison stated it could not and that the property is not
city-owned and even then, would substantially increase the cost of the project by taking on
more property. Heit stated especially a property with inherent known environmental
concerns.

Sharon Hanna asked about putting in a splash park at the city park in the summertime.
Mayor Morrison stated that splash parks are a great idea and the city would like to see one
at city park and at Jones Park. It is not covered under this grant either.

Larry Wedermyer asked if the proposed community center would be used as a storm shelter
also. Mayor Morrison stated it would not be a FEMA rated storm shelter. Kendra Beatty
with BG stated it is currently not designed or costed to be as such. Mayor Morrison how
much would it increase the cost of the project if it was designed and costed as a storm



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 4

shelter. Ms. Beatty stated the big difference when you are looking for construction on
something like that is changing out the wall types to being CMU, has to be concrete filled
and there has to be a roof cap of at least 6 inches of concrete. Ms. Beatty stated she does not
know the numbers off of the top of her head; however, it could be a somewhat significant
cost for building it since the city is looking at more of a framed construction currently.
Atchison also stated the elevation of the community center would not be the most
opportune place for a storm shelter being it is up on a hill.

Sarah Anderson asked what the direct access is and where that is going which is notated as
#2 on the rendering. Kendra Beatty with BG stated those were specially put on there as sort
of a point of interest of where people are accessing the park from. Ms. Anderson stated that
obviously their concern is for the Bailey House and there is not damage to the structure
during construction. Heit stated the new building will be west of the shelter house. Ms.
Anderson stated her concern is where all of the construction materials and equipment will
be during the construction. It was noted that those will be in the ball field. Ms. Beatty
stated when the final project is designed out that can be taken specifically into consideration
to ensure there is a decent enough berth to make sure contractors can only stage from
certain areas and can only bring their equipment so close and would be part of the phase
two of the design. Mayor Morrison stated the Bailey House is a concern of the Council as
well and would not be overlooked. Heit stated there has been a lot of city funds invested in
the Bailey House over the years. Mayor Morrison stated the Bailey House will become
something fantastic. Ms. Anderson stated that the program director already has several
ideas for use in regards to the Bailey House as soon as it is safe to do so. Sarah Hitt stated
they want to join in with the Historical Society.

Kevin Culley asked how many parking spots there will be at the new community center.
Mayor Morrison stated he believed there are 24 spots, however, asked Mr. Weishaar to
clarify. Mr. Weishaar stated the one parking spot is more intended for a drop off spot for a
large gathering and are approximately 20-24 spots. Ms. Beatty stated the plan currently
shows 24 spots, it is something that can be adjusted through the next design phase and one
of those stalls would need to be designated for ADA, so realistically there are only 23
parking spots that are currently shown, however, those numbers more of something to be
able to get to the grant people to see an idea of what is being looked at versus what is
actually going to happen in phase two of design.

Deb Smith asked if there was only going to be one handicapped parking spot out of 23.
Kendra Beatty with BG stated for what the code requires currently for that size of building
is one stall, however, if the community sees there is going to be more need for ADA parking
and they need more than one stall, they can very well work to provide that. Atchison stated
the front of the building designed so that if there is an ADA visitor but had a driver, they
could be dropped off under a covered area like what is currently available at the community
center now.

Deb Smith asked if the outside of the building will be metal and it was believed that it
would be. Heit stated there has been discussion about metal and that is what the Council is
favoring, however, it is not detailed in the plans at this point. Mayor Morrison stated that as
far as design details go, the Council has not gotten that far yet.



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 5

Sharon Hanna asked if the front of the building would be facing east or north. Mayor
Morrison stated the front of the building would be facing west. Ramey stated it would be
facing towards the ballfield. Ms. Hanna stated that at a previous council meeting there was
talk about putting in a street that would go across the park so residents could get into the
park. She stated there is a pretty high ditch there and can the city take the ditch out to put a
street in there for access. Mayor Morrison stated it is possible by installing a whistle in the
ditch and providing access from 11th Street. Heit stated the drive will truly not be an open
street, but a private drive to the building. Ms. Hanna stated that is what was discussed at
the meeting so it won't go all the way through to the other side. Mayor Morrison stated it
will connect to the current drive on the south side of the park. Atchison stated it would not
be intended to be used as a street.

Kevin Culley asked if there was going to be some kind of retaining wall built between the
proposed building and existing shelter house to address the water issues that the shelter has
all the time. Mayor Morrison stated the water issues have been discussed at length and
there will be some measures taken address the water run off issues in that area. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated there has been discussion about putting drain tile on the
west side to help with drainage and to drain it to the north. Atchison stated there has also
been discussion about adding gutters to the shelter house as well.

Sharon Hanna asked if the proposed building would hold everyone when it is time to vote.
Mayor Morrison stated the proposed community center will be larger than the current one.
Scott Harrison stated it would be bigger by approximately 1200 feet. Mayor Morrison stated
the proposed community center would be 2800 square feet and the current community
center is approximately 1600 square feet.

Sharon Hanna asked if the stage was kept in the design or not. Mayor Morrison stated that
stage was removed from the design as it would get very little use and take up valuable
space. There has been discussion about removable risers that can be used if a stage is
needed.

Sharon Culley asked if this is something that the citizens will vote on in regards to
proceeding with a new community center. Mayor Morrison stated there will not be a vote
and that is what this evening’s meeting and public hearing are for. The public hearing was
called to have citizens comment, weigh in on it and provide Council feedback on whether or
not it is a good use to taxpayers and sale tax dollars. Deb Smith asked if there was going to
be an actual citizen vote because there are no minutes in the paper and not everyone can get
online to look at the minutes to have input. Daniel Mathias stated that is what the public is
here for tonight and it will be voted on by the Council. Mr. Mathias stated that if it had not
been for people letting him know there was a meeting, he wouldn’t have known.

The City Clerk stated the notice for tonight’s meeting was published in the local paper, put
on the City’s Facebook and also posted at City Hall as well as the Post Office. She stated the
city does its best to notify residents of the meetings. The City Clerk stated that as far as
records of the minutes they are not only available online but can be picked up at City Hall
like they always have been free of charge and can even be emailed. Mayor Morrison stated
that this has been the best public meeting turn out and appreciates everyone who attended.



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 6

Daniel Mathias voiced his concern with the existing shelter house and when someone rents
the community center, will those renters think they have inherited the whole park at that
point in time. Will there be stipulations that if they rent the community center that others
still have access to the park? Mayor Morrison stated the shelter house and community
center would have separate rentals essentially. Mr. Mathias asked if there would be
conflicts now that both the community center and shelter house will be so close to each
other. Mayor Morrison stated he hoped there would not be conflicts among people and
each would have separate rentals. Mr. Mathias stated that some people would want to have
both and worries about conflicts. Ramey stated the resolution to that would be to reserve
both if the person rented them felt it was needed. Heit stated that when the person comes in
to rent the community center, they will be told that the community center is all they are
renting and if the shelter house is not rented it would be just like any other public space and
be open to use by anyone.

Deb Smith asked if both the community center and shelter house were both rented, would
there be enough parking for both. Mayor Morrison stated the parking for the shelter house
would be below the terrace and the community center would be on the hill with the
building.

Ramey stated with the new building they are shortening the baseball practice field to
approximately 200 feet due to being used only for Lyndon Rec practices for youth. He stated
that basically the city will be installing a fence to mark the 200 feet and so that whole area
minus the 200 feet from homeplate will be considered the community center.

Scott Harrison stated that before he came to the meeting, he was essentially against building
the new community center, however, since listening to all of the information, he does not
have any issues with it now. He stated he believes it is a great idea and will be good for the
community.

Mayor Morrison stated that for the community center project the city is looking at a
matching grant where the city pays half of the project costs and CDBG grant funding pays
the other half if awarded.

Deb Smith asked how many times a year is the community center rented. The City Clerk
stated at least 100 times a year, however, due to Covid the number of rentals were down in
2020. The community center was rented 79 times in 2018, 100 times in 2019, 64 times in
2020; and in 2021 so far 42 times. The City Clerk also stated there could have been more
rentals, however, there have been many times where the building has not been big enough
for the events wanting to held there. She also stated that during the pandemic city council
meetings and planning and zoning meetings were held there. The City Clerk also stated
that the senior ladies hold card games there every Monday and there used to be Arm Chair
Aerobics every Thursday.

Deb Smith asked if the fees for rental will stay about the same as they are now. Mayor
Morrison stated that the increase of rental fees has not been discussed, if it was it would a
minimal amount, and the city would not increase it substantially to pay for the building.

Sharon Hanna asked what will happen to the existing community center once the new one
is built. Mayor Morrison stated the building will be condemned and torn down as part of



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 7

the FEMA buyout program. Daniel Mathias asked if the money from the FEMA buyout will
be put towards the community center cost and the Mayor stated that it would. Heit stated
that FEMA tears down that building at no cost to the city. FEMA buys the building, tears it
down and gives back the land to the city as a green space.

Kevin Culley asked when the city purchased that building, what did they pay for it. City
Attorney Pat Walsh stated the building was donated to the city.

Sharon Hanna asked if the Council had decided to put a stove in the kitchen. Mayor
Morrison stated there would not be a stove. Atchison stated that in order for there to be a
stove, there has to be commercial ventilation which is quite costly so the Council chose to go
with a microwave and a warming oven. The City Clerk also stated there will be an ice
machine in the new facility.

Sharon Hanna stated at a previous meeting there was talk about the women'’s restroom and
when the door was opened you would be able to see feet under the stalls and asked if that
had been changed. Mayor Morrison stated the layout of the bathrooms was changed to
have the door open from a different angle to address that issue.

Deb Smith asked if there was going to be a nursing station in the building. Mayor Morrison
stated that idea has not been discussed, however, can be discussed. Ms. Beatty stated that it
was not addressed for a project this size as it is not federally required but it is definitely
something that can be taken into consideration during the full design phase. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated the city should remove the outside restroom and use some
of that space for something else.

Ramey stated that there has been some discussion about removing the additional outdoor
bathroom due to vandalism, holes in the sheet rock, etc. Shepard also stated she has heard
concerns about fires being set in the bathrooms. Ramey stated he has heard a lot of no
access to another restroom from the outside would be preferred and asked for feedback.
Daniel Mathias stated he agrees there should not be access to an outside bathroom because
if you are renting the building, you are renting the whole building. Ramey stated it would
be its own separate bathroom with the only access being from the outside. Atchison stated
there are current bathroom facilities at the city park which have been there for 54 years and
a new outside bathroom would be nice, however, understands there is a good possibility it
could be vandalized. There was brief discussion about safety and security systems being
put on the building.

Daniel Mathias asked if the grant could be used to also update the current bathroom
facilities or build a new one at city park. Mayor Morrison stated it is not part of the scope of
the community center and that is why there is an additional bathroom with access outside
included in the design.

Heit stated that while talking about nixing the outdoor bathroom and proceed without it
then in maybe of a few of years of this building being built then refurbishing or re-
accommodating the bathrooms in the park as they are old and outdated.

Larry Wedermyer asked if this was going to be voted on tonight by the governing body.
Mayor Morrison stated yes, the Council will vote to proceed and hire Garrett Nordstrom



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021

Page 8

with Western Consultants to write the grant and proceed with the planning stage of the

project.

Mayor Morrison asked in general by a show of hands by the public how many were in favor
of proceeding with the new community center and a majority of the people in attendance
were in favor of the city proceeding.

At 7:51 p.m. Heit made the motion to close the public hearing as there were no more
comments or questions. Atchison seconded; motion carried.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

a)

CONTRACT FOR GRANT WRITING SERVICE - WESTERN CONSULTANTS:
Mayor Morrison asked the City Attorney if he had reviewed the contract and the
City Attorney stated he did not see any issues with it. Atchison made the motion to
approve the contract with Western Consultants for grant writing services in the
amount of $8,950.00. Ramey seconded; motion carried.

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - BG CONSULTANTS: Heit made
the motion to approve the contract with BG Consultants for professional services in
the amount of $113,784. Ramey seconded; motion carried.

c) JACKSON STREET UPDATE: Wes Weishaar stated that project is
constructed and construction is complete. The contractor was here last week to
finish up seeding up and down the gravity main and force main alignment. The
generators were installed and started up in the last month and are in operation.
Jackson Street residents are connected and using the gravity main and lift station.

Outstanding items to “wrap-up”:
e Surface moisture at service tap - being monitored and this time is dry with no
other issues.
o Seeding - This item is typically addressed more than once as turf is established.
e Gravel Surfacing

Recommended Action Items for Council Consideration:
¢ Approve Substantial Completion date of September 15, 2021.
e Approve Pay Application #3 - $253,017.30 - Approximately $40,000
remaining on contract.

The above recommended actions items will be on the October 18, 2021 agenda.

Mayor Morrison asked about the properties being returned to the way they were prior
to construction. Jeff Clark had a concern that he had gravel in that access all the way
back towards the storage units and that had been turned to dirt. Mayor Morrison stated



Regular Council Minutes of October 11, 2021
Page 9.

Mayor Morrison asked about the properties being returned to the way they were prior
to construction. Jeff Clark had a concern that he had gravel in that access all the way
back towards the storage units and that had been turned to dirt. Mayor Morrison stated
they had talked about whether the contract would replace the gravel or if they would
put in a culvert and asked if any of that had been done. Wes Weishaar stated he had
spoken to the contractor and they were going to go back through documentation of the
pre-construction site and Wes stated he would follow up with him again tomorrow. Jeff
Clark also stated that he would in favor of having a dedicated entrance for the property

in lieu of replacing the gravel.

5. ADJOURNMENT: Atchison made the motion to adjourn to Monday, October 18, 2021 at
7:00 p.m. for regular meeting. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Julie Stutzman, CMC
City Clerk

Approved by the governing body on m ] g , 2021

OF L‘r’/‘/ ’r,'
A“ESQQ,U Lot in > Lhe S
= ..' g 'n. s

ulie Stutzman, C § :
J i SEAL

City Clerk

LTI



